
 

Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday August 18th, 2025 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the August 18th, 2025 Regular Meeting of The Lyman Select Board. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 
ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS  

 
ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 

a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.  
Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others. The Board may not 
be able to respond to Q&A during public comment; If you wish to be placed on a future agenda, 
please contact the Town Manager.  

b. Mail     • MMA Letter     

ITEM #3 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any  
b. RFP – Bunganut Park Accommodation Improvement Project – Opened Bids 8/4/25, TBD 
c. Discussion – Kennebunk Pond Beach Gate Damages/Repairs – updates since last meeting.  
d. Discussion – Old Post Rd Abandonment Updates and Public Hearing Info 
e. Review Approve Land Swap Quit Claim 
f. KerryJo Sampson – Discussion regarding Newsletter Distribution methods 

 
ITEM #4 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  

a. Fire Commission/ Fire Chief 
b. Treasurer – Expense Report  
c. Town Clerk – Report 
d. Town Manager - Report 
e. ECO ME Rep – Proportional Shares 

 
ITEM #5 NEW BUSINESS 

a. Review/Approve Certificate of Settlement 
 
ITEM #6 MINUTES 

a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 08/04/2025 

ITEM #7  SIGN WARRANTS  
a. Payroll Warrant #9 in the amount of $29,429.70 
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #8 (FY2026) in the amount of $75,091.03 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1 M.R.S.A §405 (A) Discussion regarding personnel matters 
 
Appointment – Age Friendly Ad Hoc Committee  
 
 
 
ADJOURN 



ITEM #2: (b.) Mail













TOWN OF LYMAN 
11 So. Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002  

Tel: (207)-247-0642 FAX: (207)-499-7563 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

BUNGANUT PARK ACCOMMODATION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PROJECT TITLE: Bunganut Park Accommodation Improvement Project 

PROPOSAL DUE DATE: August 4th, 2025 by 1:00pm  
Sealed bids will be opened on August 4th, 2025 during the Select Board meeting. 

PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE: Delivery of items must be completed by October 1st, 2025 

CONTENTS OF THIS RFP: 

1. Introduction
2. Scope of Work
3. Conditions & Instructions to Bidders
4. Pricing
5. Submission of Proposals
6. Bid Proposal Form

1. INTRODUCTION

The Town of Lyman is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors to provide wheelchair accessible composite 
material picnic tables and for placement at Bunganut Park, located at 224 Brock Road, Lyman, Maine 04002 

The intention of this RFP is to solicit responses and formal proposals and select a single organization to provide 
services to the Town of Lyman. 

The scope of work is as outlined in this request for proposal. This document does not commit the Town of Lyman to 
any contract for any service, supply, or subscription whatsoever. The Town of Lyman will not reimburse any 
information or administrative costs incurred as a result of participation in response to the RFP. All costs associated 
with response will solely reside at the responding party’s expense.  

Please submit your proposal in a sealed envelope to the Town of Lyman by August 4th, 2025 by 1:00pm EST. 
Proposals must be addressed to: 

Town of Lyman, Select Board 
RFP: Bunganut Park Accommodation Improvement Project 
11 South Waterboro Rd 
Lyman, ME 04002 

Please mark sealed proposals plainly “RFP: Bunganut Park Accommodation Improvement Project”. Proposals will be 
opened publicly during the Select Boards regular meeting on August 4th, 2025. The Town will not except late bids.  
Questions regarding this request for proposal should be directed to: 

townmanager@lyman-me.gov 
Tel. (207)-247-0642  
11 South Waterboro Rd 
Lyman, ME 04002 

ITEM #3: (b.) Bunagnut Park Picnic Tables Bids

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov


2. SCOPE OF WORK

The Town of Lyman received funding from the Lifelong Maine Community Connections Grant program, which awards 
funding for small projects that make public spaces more welcoming and accessible for Maine’s age friendly 
communities. This project must be fully completed by December 15, 2025. The goal of the Bunganut Park 
Accommodation Improvement project is to provide wheelchair accessible tables to augment seating and replace 
existing seating that is beyond repair. 

o Site location for delivery of items: 224 Brock Rd Lyman, ME 04002 (Bunganut Park)
o The specific items requested are: Composite material wheelchair accessible picnic tables
o Quantity: 9
o Items are to be delivered by: October 1, 2025. Contractor shall supply and deliver all materials
o Other: Vendor is to specify assembly requirements, if any, approximate size of tables, color options available;

grey is preferred, and any other services or labor required.
o Contractor must provide proof of insurance coverage including a certificate naming the Town of Lyman as

additionally insured and must agree to terms and conditions as outlined in the Towns

Contractor/Subcontractor Agreement.

3. CONDITIONS & INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

• Bidders shall use the enclosed bid form and submit additional information/credentials attached with bid form.

• Proposals must include separate line-item costs for any or all the items outlined on the proposal form.

• Proposals must be completed in full and must be signed by a firm official or representative. Proposals may be
withdrawn prior to the time set for the official opening. Request for withdrawn must be submitted in writing.

• Proposals will be opened publicly. Bidders or representatives may be present at opening.

• Issuance of this RFP and receipt of proposals does not commit the Town to award a contract. The Town
reserves the right to postpone receipt date, accepting or rejecting any or all proposals received in response
to this RFP, or to negotiate with any of the consultants/firms submitting an RFP, or to cancel all or part of this
RFP.

• Please state “RFP: Bunganut Park Accommodation Improvement Project” on submitted, sealed envelope.

• The Town of Lyman reserves the right to waive any formality and technicality, whichever is deemed best for
the interest of the Town.

• The Select Board will review sealed bids in an open public meeting and may, at the boards’ discretion, delay award
pending further review. It should be noted that the contract resulting from this RFP will be awarded to the
respondent whose proposal is determined to be in the “best interest” of the Town. Therefore, the proposal
offering the lowest cost may not necessarily be the proposal that is selected for award.

• RIGHT OF REFUSAL. The Town reserves the right to: a) Reject any or all proposals, or to make no award. b)
Select certain applications from the proposals. c) Require modifications to initial proposals. d) to make partial
or multiple awards. e) award based on initial proposals received, without discussion of such proposals. f)
invite selected vendors to make oral presentations to the evaluations team. Failure of a vendor to comply
with the request for meeting may be grounds for bid rejections. g) excuse technical defects in a proposal
when, in its sole discretion, such as excuse is beneficial to the Town.

• If awarded the contractor will enter into a Contractor/Subcontractor agreement with the Town on which the
agreement and terms shall be provided by the Town.

• If awarded, the Contractor will furnish the Town with a certificate(s) of insurance executed by a duly



authorized representative of each insurer, showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth 
below. The Contractor shall, at its own expense, obtain and keep in force insurance coverage during the full 
term of the contract. Upon the Town’s acceptance of the Contractor’s proposal, a Certificate of Insurance 
shall be provided to the Town by the Contractor or the Contractor’s insurance company before any work is 
performed.  The Contractor’s policies shall name the Town of Lyman as an additional insured. 

o Liability Insurance (Or Commercial Liability): Contractor shall maintain general liability with a limit of
not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000), combined single limit.

o Automobile Liability Insurance: Contractor shall maintain automobile liability insurance with a limit
not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit.

o Workers’ Compensation: Contractor will maintain workers’ compensation in amounts required by
Main law and Employer’s Liability Insurance, as necessary, as required by Maine law. If in the event
the contractor is not required to carry workers’ compensation according to Maine law, then the
contractor must provide the Town with an approved Independent Contractors Status from the State
of Maine.

4. PRICING

Proposals will clearly state and explain all costs associated with the services provided. The Town of Lyman will not 
make any advance payments. Invoices for services performed shall be submitted once the work is completed. The 
Town will pay the contractor on the next available accounts payable warrant provided all required documents per 
RFP are received.  

There is no expressed or implied obligation on the part of the Town of Lyman to reimburse bidders for any expenses 
incurred in preparing or presenting proposals in response to this request.  

The Town of Lyman is tax exempt and will provide an exemption certificate to the bidding vendor awarded. 

5. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS

All proposals must be submitted in sealed envelopes, addressed to the Town of Lyman, Select Board and plainly 
marked “RFP: Bunganut Park Accommodation Improvement Project”  

Bid proposals will be date stamped on the outside of the envelope immediately upon receipt. Any bid may be 
withdrawn in writing prior to the scheduled time for opening bids. Any bids received after the time and date 
specified shall not be considered and shall be returned to the bidder unopened. Bidders shall bid to specifications 
and any exceptions must be noted. A bidder submitting a bid thereby certifies that the bid is made in good faith 
without fraud, collusion, or connection of any kind with any other bidder for the same work, and that the bidder is 
competing solely on his/her behalf without connection with or obligation to any unsolicited person or firm.  

The Town Manager will serve as the single point of contact for this request. All official communication between the 
bidder and the Town upon release of this RFP shall be with the Town Manager. Any other communication will be 
considered unofficial and non-binding on the Town. However, bidders are encouraged to inquire about the scope of 
work, if necessary, to help submit an accurate bid.  

Lindsay Gagne 
Town Manager 
11 South Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002 
Tel. (207)-247-0642 
email: Townmanager@lyman-me.gov 

This RFP does not obligate the Town of Lyman to contract for services specified herein. 

mailto:Townmanager@lyman-me.gov


6. BID PROPOSAL FORM

Due: August 4th, 2025  by 1:00pm  EST. 

To: Town of Lyman, Select Board 
RFP: Bunganut Park Accommodation Improvement Project 
11 South Waterboro Rd 
Lyman, ME 04002 

Contractor must provide individual cost per item 
***Include description; Materials type, approximate size, color options available (grey is preferred) 
*** Include any additional services, labor, delivery, assembly, etc.  
***Specify if assembly is provided by the vendor or not provided.  
***Town of Lyman is tax exempt, and will provide an exemption certificate to the bidding vendor awarded. 

List Description of Units: Include Type of materials, approximate size and/or seating capacity, color options 
available (grey is preferred), and any other descriptions 
_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Cost per unit $________________ Quantity – 9 tables 

A. Cost per unit x 9 units $___________________ 

B. Assembly Cost: $___________________ 

C. Shipping/Delivery fees $___________________ 

D. Other (labor, services, etc.) $___________________ List other:____________________________

_________________________________ 

_________________________________ 

TOTAL AMOUNT $___________________ 



RFP Bunganut Park Accommodation improvement Project 

Bids Due By: 1pm, August 4th, 2025 

Open Sealed Bids: 8-4-2025 

Awarded Bid: TBD 

RFP’s received: 2 

1. U-Line

Submitted 7-31-2025

1-800-295-5510

Customer.service@uline.com

www.uline.com

Request # Item # Item Description Unit Price Qty Total Price 

PRB911070 
Option: 1 

H-2671 ADA Metal Picnic Table – 46” Square. Grey Color. 9 Guage 
steel metal with 2” black steel frame. Thermoplastic coating 
– Rust Free. Mounting & Hardware Included – Assembly
Required

$1,045.00 

+837.56 S&H
.00 Sales Tax

9 $10,242.56 

PRB911092 
Option: 2 

H-2673 ADA Metal Picnic Table – 8’ Rectangle. Grey Color. 9 Guage 
steel metal with 2” black steel frame. Thermoplastic coating 
– Rust Free. Mounting & Hardware Included – Assembly
Required

$1,070.00 

+749.08 S&H
.00 Sales Tax

9 $10,379.08 

PRB911086 
Option: 3 

H-2672 ADA Metal Picnic Table – 46” Round. Grey Color. 2’ thick 
pre-drilled planks. Thermoplastic coating – Rust Free. 
Mounting & Hardware Included – Assembly Required 

$1,050.00 

+837.56 S&H
.00 Sales Tax

9 $10,260.92 

PRB911070 
Option: 4 

H-2671 ADA Recycled Plastic Picnic Table – 46” Hex. Grey Color. 9 
Guage steel metal with 2” black steel frame. 100% recycled 
UV-protected Plastic. Seats 4 adults + 1 wheelchair. 
Mounting & Hardware Included – Assembly Required 

$1,235.00 

+736.98 S&H
.00 Sales Tax

9 $11,851.98 

Other 
Notes 

Each option – Delivery time – 2 business days via drop ship freight – Assembly Required, includes assembly 
manual.  

mailto:Customer.service@uline.com
http://www.uline.com/


2. Lowery’s Lawn & patio, Inc

Submitted 8/1/2025

Kieth Lowery

549 Portland St

Berwick, ME 03901

(207)-384-5903

keith@loweryspatio.com

www.loweryspatio.com

Option 
# 

Item Description Unit Price Qty Total Price 

Opt: 1 Berlin Gardens HDPE ADA picnic table – 6’ Rectangle. Two frame color 
(Light or Smoke Gray). ADA compliant with a extended end for wheelchair 
seating. 

$1,893.00 

.00 S&H 

.00 Sales Tax 

9 $17,037.00 

Opt: 2 Colonial Road HDPR ADA Picnic Table – 6’ Rectangle. Two frame color 
(light or dark gray) Customed size for ADA compliance.  
Dimensional Notes: 6-foot picnic table.  
Size: 60’D x 72”W x 30”H.  
Top Size: 34”D x 72”W  

$1,899.00 

.00 S&H 

.00 Sales Tax 

9 $17,091.00 

Other 
Notes 

Assembly specifications/options not indicated in bid 

mailto:keith@loweryspatio.com
http://www.loweryspatio.com/


Option 1



Option 1



Option 2



Option 2



Option 3



Option 3



Option 4



Option 4

















ITEM #3: ( c.) Kennebunk Beach Gate Updates









TOWN OF LYMAN
11 South Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

Tel. 207-247-0642     Fax. 207-499-7563 

townmanager@lyman-me.gov 

[Date] 

ABUTTER 

ADDRESS 

ADDRESS 

FROM:  The Municipal Officers of the Town of Lyman 

Dear Property Owner: 

Our records show that you own property abutting Old Post Road (also known as 

Doughty Road, also known as Nadeau Road). This is to notify you that on October 20th, 

2025 at 6:00 p.m. (following the public hearing), the Board of Selectmen will meet at the 

Lyman Town Hall to determine whether they will vote to declare that Old Post Road 

between Alewive Road (also known as Route 35) and Day Road is discontinued by 

abandonment pursuant to 23 M.R.S.A. § 3028-A. The Board of Selectmen will hold a 

public hearing on the matter on October 20th, 2025 at 6:00 p.m.  

This section of Old Post Road was / is now a town way approximately 15-feet 

wide beginning at the intersection of the Alewive Road and running for a distance of 

approximately 0.43 miles in a generally Southwesterly direction to the intersection of 

Day Road as shown more particularly on Lyman Tax Map Number 8, on file at the 

Lyman Town Hall, located at 11 South Waterboro Lane, Lyman, Maine 

The Town of Lyman Board of Selectmen will vote whether to retain a public 

easement in the road. 

If the Town of Lyman Board of Selectmen vote to declare Old Post Road 

discontinued by abandonment, the Town of Lyman will have no obligation to maintain, 

repair, or plow the road but the public will still have the right to travel over it unless the 

public easement is extinguished, as well. If the public easement is also extinguished, the 

Town of Lyman will have no obligation to maintain, repair, or plow the road and the 

public will not have the right to travel over it. Ownership of the road is generally 

presumed to revert to the abutting landowners to the centerline.  

As an abutting property owner, you would have the right to maintain a road 

discontinued by abandonment and to form a road association or to enter private 

DRAFT
ITEM #3: (d.) Old Post Rd Updates

mailto:townmanager@lyman-me.gov


agreements to maintain, plow, and repair the road if it is discontinued by abandonment 

with or without a public easement. Abutting property owners have the right to establish 

private easements to provide access to their property if they do not already possess a 

private right of access. 

The Board of Selectmen will hold a public hearing on these matters on October 

20th, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. at the Lyman Town Hall. The Board of Selectmen will hold a vote 

to discontinue Old Post Road by abandonment at its regular meeting following the public 

hearing on October 20th, 2025. As an abutter, you or your designated agent are invited to 

attend and be heard at the public hearing and attend the meeting of the Selectboard. 

A person affected by a vote to declare a town way discontinued by abandonment 

may appeal the decision by filing a written appeal request, pursuant to 23 M.R.S.A. § 

3028-A(7) within 10 days of the vote as follows:   

A. With the municipal clerk for an appeal of a vote by the municipal officers

in a municipality with a board of appeals authorized to hear the appeal;

B. With the county clerk for an appeal of a vote by the municipal officers in a

municipality that does not have a board of appeals authorized to hear the appeal;

or

C. With the county clerk for an appeal of a vote by the county

commissioners.

Within 15 days after receiving a written appeal request filed pursuant to this 

subsection, the municipal clerk or county clerk shall schedule a public hearing on the 

appeal before the municipal board of appeals or county commissioners and provide 

written notice of the hearing date to the municipal officers or county commissioners and 

the person filing the appeal request. The public hearing must occur no more than 30 days 

after the appeal request is received.   

A person aggrieved by the decision of the Lyman Board of Appeals may appeal 

the decision to the Superior Court in the county where the town way is situated, pursuant 

to the Maine Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 80B.   

DRAFT



Dated:  ________________________ _______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

Victoria Gavel, Chair 

_______________________ 

Amber Swett 

________________________ 

David Alves 

________________________ 

KerryJo Sampson 

________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

DRAFT



QUITCLAIM DEED 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS 

That, the INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF LYMAN, a body corporate and 

politic, with a mailing address of 11 South Waterboro Road, in the Town of Lyman, County 

of York and State of Maine 04002, 

for consideration paid, 

grants to J. JACQUES, LLC, a limited liability company duly organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of Maine with a mailing address of 3 Camp Ellis Avenue, in 

the City of Saco, County of York and State of Maine 04072,  

with QUITCLAIM COVENANT, 

A certain lot or parcel of land located northerly of, but not adjacent thereto, the northerly 

sideline of South Waterboro Road, so-called, in the Town of Lyman, County of York and 

State of Maine; said parcel being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a capped iron rod to be set (PLS #2190) on the northerly sideline of land 

now or formerly of J. Jacques, LLC (Grantee) at the corner of remaining land of the 

Inhabitants of the Town of Lyman (Grantor); said point beginning being N 30°-34’-24” E 

a distance of 150.55 feet from a capped iron rod found (PLS #1235) on the northerly 

sideline of said South Waterboro Road at the southeasterly corner of land of J. Jacques, 

LLC and the southeasterly corner of the Inhabitants of the Town of Lyman; 

thence from said point of beginning N 30°-34’-24” E along the remaining land of the 

Inhabitants of the Town of Lyman a distance of 24.00 feet to a capped iron rod to be set 

(PLS #2190); 

thence S 63°-06’-28” E along the remaining land of the Inhabitants of the Town of 

Lyman a distance of 85.45 feet to a capped iron rod to be set (PLS #2190) and land now 

or formerly of the Arion Mason Club, Inc.; 

thence S 35°-26’-29” W along the land of the Arion Mason Club, Inc. a distance of 24.51 

feet to a capped iron rod to be set (PLS #2190) and land of J. Jacques, LLC; 

thence N 63°-06’-28” W along the land of J. Jaques, LLC a distance of 83.39 feet to the 

point of beginning. 

The above-described parcel contains 2,022 square feet. 

COPY
ITEM #3: (e.) Town Hall Expansion Land Swap



All bearings refer to grid north. 

Being a portion of the premises conveyed to the Grantor herein by warranty deed of 

David W. Smith, et al dated July 18, 1994 and recorded in the York County Registry of 

Deeds in Book 7123, Page 77. 

The Inhabitants of the Town of Lyman has caused this instrument to be signed in its 

corporate name by Victoria Gavel, Chair of the Board of Selectmen, Amber Swett, Vice-

Chair of the Board of Selectmen; KerryJo Sampson, member of the Board of Selectmen; 

David Alves, member of the Board of Selectmen and Joseph Wagner, member of the Board 

of Selectmen, duly authorized, this ____ day of ____________________, 2025. 

INHABITANTS OF THE 

TOWN OF LYMAN 

______________________________ BY:__________________________ 

WITNESS Victoria Gavel 

Board Member, Duly Authorized 

______________________________ BY:__________________________ 

WITNESS Amber Swett 

Board Member, Duly Authorized 

______________________________ BY:__________________________ 

WITNESS KerryJo Sampson 

Board Member, Duly Authorized 

______________________________ BY:__________________________ 

WITNESS David Alves 

Board Member, Duly Authorized 

______________________________ BY:__________________________ 

WITNESS Joseph Wagner  

Board Member, Duly Authorized COPY



STATE OF MAINE 

COUNTY OF YORK 

_______________________, 2025 

Then personally appeared the above Select Board of the Town of Lyman and 

acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be their free act and deed in their said 

capacities, and the free act and deed of the Town of Lyman. 

Before me, 

______________________________ 

Notary Public 

Print Name: 

My Commission Expires 

COPY



ITEM #4: (a.) GMFD Report



ITEM #4: (b.) Expense Report

























ITEM #4: (c.) Town Clerk Report







Town Manager’s Updates 

August 18th, 2025 

Town Hall Expansion 

Following the presentation of the Town Hall expansion plans at the June Town Meeting, the 

architectural firm has begun gathering additional project data. The next milestone will be the 

development of a Pricing Set of documents covering key components such as structural 

designs, and Mechanical, Electrical, and Plumbing (MEP) performance specifications. This 

stage will provide a framework for estimating project costs and refining scope. While the 

exact timeline for completing this phase remains uncertain, it is a critical step toward making 

informed financial and construction decisions. 

MyRec Program – Scheduling Services 

On January 23, 2025, we began developing and implementing the MyRec program for 

managing facility and recreation scheduling which launched for public use by April of 2025. 

Our initial focus has been on the athletic field usage and Bunganut Pines rental reservations. 

With ease, users have been able to navigate the website as well as the integrated Bluetooth 

gate locks. This year the Pines Rentals have generated $6,434 in revenue with potential for 

more earnings through the remainder of the season. By comparison of prior years before the 

MyRec implementation, revenues were estimated at approximately $2,500, although the data 

was inconsistent. Field use at Bunganut as shown a combined total reservations of 440 hours 

up through mid-August. Even in its pilot phase, MyRec has proven to be an efficient, user-

friendly tool that improves both customer experience and operational tracking.  

Employee Recruitment 

The hiring process for the Property Records Assistant and the Director of Facilities and 

Recreational Services has concluded, and both positions have been filled. We welcome 

aboard our new team members. The Assessing Department will be helping to onboard the 

Property Records Assistant, who will support both administrative functions and on-site 

inspections. I will be working closely with the new Director of Facilities to review our 

municipal assets and establish short- and long-term goals for our facilities that have been 

long overdue 

ITEM #4: (d.) Town Manager Report



November Election – State Referendum 

The State Referendum Election will take place on November 4, 2025. Voters can find detailed 

information about ballot questions on Maine.gov. Absentee ballot requests are now available 

and may be submitted through Town Hall, online at Maine.gov, or via the State’s Absentee 

Ballot Request Service. More notification and updates will be posted as more information is 

available for the upcoming election. Visit the links below for absentee voting information and 

online absentee requests.  

Click this link here for information about upcoming State Elections - Maine.gov  

Click this link here to request an absentee ballot using the Maine/gov Web Portal 

New On-Going Absentee Ballot Request Status - New election laws passed as of February, 

2024 allow voters at least 65 years of age or who self-identify as having a disability to apply 

for status as an ongoing absentee voter; to which each qualified applicant will automatically 

receive an absentee ballot for all State and Municipal elections where they would be eligible 

to vote in. If interested in signing up or if you have questions regarding on-going absentee 

ballot request, stop by the Town Hall or call the Town Clerks Office. 

New Services 

The Code Enforcement Department has partnered with Axis GIS to implement a Geographic 

Information System (GIS) mapping service. This tool will enhance access to parcel information 

for both staff and residents, offering capabilities such as generating abutter lists, mapping 

overlays, mailing labels, and other functions. These improvements will streamline processes 

for building permit applications, site plan reviews, and property assessment inquiries. To 

ensure the process is implemented smoothly it is recommended we begin implementation 

once we have rolled over from TRIO to Town Cloud services. This will prevent service 

disruptions and any added costs for updates and roll-overs. Town Cloud is still on schedule to 

begin January 2026. Once Axis GIS is up and running, public access will be provided on the 

Towns website. 

Other Updates 

Recent TRIO system updates have caused technical issues within the assessing module, 

potentially delaying the tax commitment process and the mailing of tax bills. We are actively 

working with TRIO to resolve the problem, ensuring that all property records are accurate 

prior to commitment. Even if billing extends beyond the October 1 deadline, current financial 

reserves put us in a stable position to manage operations without disruption. If potential for 

delay is determined, updates will be posted. 

https://www.maine.gov/sos/cec/elec/upcoming/index.html
https://apps.web.maine.gov/cgi-bin/online/AbsenteeBallot/index.pl


Tons % Total
Bridgton 100,005 4.36% 835,059 
Cape Elizabeth 111,336 4.85% 929,675 
Casco 34,644 1.51% 289,281 
Cumberland 77,806 3.39% 649,689 
Falmouth 88,550 3.86% 739,402 
Freeport 73,141 3.19% 610,738 

Gorham 100,750 4.39% 841,277 
Gray 95,348 4.15% 796,169 
Harrison 37,992 1.65% 317,235 
Hollis 54,562 2.38% 455,604 
Limington 56,879 2.48% 474,948 
Lyman 53,383 2.32% 445,760 
North Yarmouth 33,725 1.47% 281,610 
Ogunquit 47,601 2.07% 397,476 
Portland 522,341 22.75% 4,361,617 
Pownal 11,981 0.52% 100,046 
Scarborough 219,220 9.55% 1,830,514 
South Portland 275,352 11.99% 2,299,226 
Waterboro 91,754 4.00% 766,162 

Windham 109,029 4.75% 910,405 
Yarmouth 100,746 4.39% 841,245 
Total 2,296,145 100.00% 19,173,138$  

19,173,138$  

Note: The above data is based on unaudited ecomaine financial statements for the 
year ending June 30, 2025 and we anticipate that FY2025 audited financials will be 
approved by the ecomaine Board on October 17, 2025. 

Proportional Share of Landfill Close/Post Close Costs

Community

FY 1989 - FY 2025 MSW

Share of Costs

ITEM #4: (e.) ECO ME Rep



ITEM #5: (a.) Certificate of Settlement



Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday August 4th, 2025 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 5 

These are summary minutes in nature only and a full video recording of the proceeding is available to view on our 
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams or visit our website: 

https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/  

Selectboard members present: Victoria Gavel, Amber Swett, David Alves, Joseph Wagner, KerryJo Sampson 
Selectboard members absent:  

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
a. Historical Society Presents: York County Baseball Penny Poll at Acton Fair

Steve Lord – Lyman Historical Society will sponsor a Penny Poll at the Acton Fair from August 21–24.
The poll will ask, “Who was the greatest baseball player from York County – Jack Combs
(Kennebunk), Harry Lord (Kezar Falls), or Fred Parent (Biddeford)?” Polls will be open Thursday
through Saturday, 10:00 a.m.–7:00 p.m., and Sunday, 10:00 a.m.–4:00 p.m. The Waterboro Reporter
will feature articles on each poll choice over the next three weeks. Tonight’s presentation focused
on Bobby Combs of Lyman, nephew of Jack Combs. The Historical Society recently received donated
memorabilia from his granddaughter. Bobby Combs played in the Major Leagues with the New York
Giants and several Minor League teams, coached at Williams College (where the field is named in his
honor), and is featured in the Baseball Hall of Fame exhibit at the Portland Sea Dogs Stadium.

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others. The Board may not
be able to respond to Q&A during public comment; If you wish to be placed on a future agenda,
please contact the Town Manager.
Michelle Feliccitti – Comments there were people swimming at Kennebunk Pond Beach after signs
were posted regarding the bacteria levels. The Bunganut Pines Rental area is posted from the Bridge
all the way to the Chapel, and she wasn’t certain if that whole area was for the Pines rentals.

b. Mail - None

ITEM #3 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any

KerryJo Sampson – The Maine Community Media Association (MCMA) consolidated everything and
sent to the Sate Board which is the Maine Connectivity Authority (MCA) and currently we are
waiting for input from MCA whether they will approve or deny it.

b. RFP – Town Hall Backup generator Upgrade - Open Bids
One Bid received:

Ed Profenno Jr.

Submitted 7-28-2025

Item Description: 22KW Generator with 200 Amp Transfer Switch. Concrete Platform. 120-Foot Gen 

Cable. 1 Wet Cell Battery. Permit. Labor 

Total Amount: $17,000 

Joseph Wagner – Motions to accept the bid.  

KerryJo Sampson – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-1 (Victoria Gavel, Amber Swett, 

Joseph Wagner, KerryJo Sampson in favor; David Alves abstains). 

DRAFT
ITEM #6: (a.) Minutes

https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams
https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/


Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday July 21st, 2025 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 5 

c. RFP – Bunganut Park Accommodation Improvement Project – Open Bids
Two Bids received:

Bid #1: U-Line 

Submitted 7-31-2025 

Request # Item # Item Description Unit Price Qty Total Price 

PRB911070 

Option: 1 

H-

2671 

ADA Metal Picnic Table – 46” Square. Grey Color. 9 Gauge 
steel metal with 2” black steel frame. Thermoplastic 
coating – Rust Free. Mounting & Hardware Included – 
Assembly Required 

$1,045.00 

+837.56 S&H

.00 Sales Tax

9 $10,242.56 

PRB911092 

Option: 2 

H-

2673 

ADA Metal Picnic Table – 8’ Rectangle. Grey Color. 9 
Gauge steel metal with 2” black steel frame. Thermoplastic 
coating – Rust Free. Mounting & Hardware Included – 
Assembly Required 

$1,070.00 

+749.08 S&H

.00 Sales Tax

9 $10,379.08 

PRB911086 

Option: 3 

H-

2672 

ADA Metal Picnic Table – 46” Round. Grey Color. 9 Guage 
steel metal with 2” black steel frame. Thermoplastic 
coating – Rust Free. Mounting & Hardware Included – 
Assembly Required 

$1,050.00 

+837.56 S&H

.00 Sales Tax

9 $10,260.92 

PRB911070 

Option: 4 

H-

2671 

ADA Recycled Plastic Picnic Table – 46” Hex. Grey Color. 2’ 
thick pre-drilled planks. 100% recycled UV-protected 
Plastic. Seats 4 adults + 1 wheelchair. Mounting & 
Hardware Included – Assembly Required 

$1,235.00 

+736.98 S&H

.00 Sales Tax

9 $11,851.98 

Other 

Notes 

Each option – Delivery time – 2 business days via drop ship freight – Assembly Required, includes 

assembly manual.  

Bid #1: Lowery’s Lawn & patio, Inc 

Submitted 8/1/2025 

Kerry Jo Sampson – Motions to table item to next meeting for Board review 
Joseph Wagner– Seconds the motion. Motion passes 5-0-0 

Option Item Description Unit Price Qty Total Price 

Opt: 1 Berlin Gardens HDPE ADA picnic table – 6’ Rectangle. Two frame colors 

(Light or Smoke Gray). ADA compliant with a extended end for wheelchair 

seating. 

$1,893.00 

.00 S&H 

.00 Sales Tax 

9 $17,037.00 

Opt: 2 Colonial Road HDPR ADA Picnic Table – 6’ Rectangle. Two frame colors 

(light or dark gray) Customed size for ADA compliance.  

Dimensional Notes: 6-foot picnic table.  

Size: 60’D x 72”W x 30”H.  

Top Size: 34”D x 72”W  

$1,899.00 

.00 S&H 

.00 Sales Tax 

9 $17,091.00 

Other 

Notes 

Assembly specifications/options not indicated in bid DRAFT



Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday July 21st, 2025 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 5 

David Alves – Motions to move out of order Item #5(a.) 
KerryJo Sampson– Seconds the motion. Motion passes 5-0-0 
(See Item #5(a.) for discussion 

1. Discussion – Kennebunk Pond Beach Gate Damages/Repairs – tabled from last meeting.
The Board discussed obtaining quotes for a cantilever-style gate but expressed concerns about snow 
drifting against it. Alternatives considered included replacing the current gate or upgrading to a pay-
gate system where non-residents would need a pass card and pay a parking fee. Maine Inland 
Fisheries rules permit such a fee as long as there is no charge for boat launch or fishing access. 
Visitors could still access the pond for these activities under a pay-gate system. The Board discussed 
pursuing charges against the individual responsible for the damages. The Town’s insurance provider 
is actively pursuing the matter, further discussion to consider additional charges to recover the 
deductible or other expenses. More information is needed regarding insurance reimbursement. 
David Alves – Motions table the item until there is more information  
Joseph Wager – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

ITEM #4 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Fire Commission/ Fire Chief

Victoria Gavel – Emailed the Board with the Goodwins Mills Fire Department (GMFD) July statistical
information. The next Fire Commission meeting is scheduled for August 14th, 2025 at 5:15pm
located at the Fire Department.

b. Treasurer – Expense Report FY25 &FY26 – Reviewed in Packet
c. Eco Maine Rep, Amber Swett – Food Waste Diversion Program Updates

Amber Swett – Amber Swett reported the Town received the full $22,261 grant award. On August 1,
the Town Manager submitted an application to Maine DEP to amend the Transfer Station License to
include a food waste collection area. Purchases for the program can begin now, but operations
cannot start until DEP approves the amendment. ECO Maine representatives attended a Parks & Rec
concert to share information about food waste diversion. We’ve begun collecting information for
residents that want to participate in the food waste collection program. Abby Heart from ECO Maine
produced a spotlight on the Lyman Transfer Station, including an interview with Amber. In FY2025,
the Town spent $156,000 on municipal solid waste; diverting 40% of food waste could save
approximately $62,593 annually. A dedicated email, lyman.ecomerep@lyman-me.gov , is available
for residents interested in signing up, volunteering, asking questions, or providing feedback.

ITEM #5 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Rustic Dreams – Renewal application for Liquor License and Special Amusement Permit

The Code Enforcement Officer completed the inspection with no concerns. No complaints have
been received. The Board agreed to waive a public hearing.
David Alves – Motions to approve the Liquor License Renewal Application and Special Amusement
Permit renewal for Rustic Dreams.
KerryJo Sampson – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

b. Town Line Restaurant – Renewal Application for Liquor License
Amber Swett – Motions to approve the renewal application for Town Line Restaurant.
KerryJo Sampson – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

c. Discussion from last meeting regarding Select Board quarterly newsletter
The Board discussed content guidelines and oversight. Current policies for social media and web
postings have to go through the Town Manager who will review the content if it’s appropriate. The

DRAFT

mailto:lyman.ecomerep@lyman-me.gov


Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday July 21st, 2025 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 4 of 5 

newsletter should focus on relevant information for the public and avoid personal spotlights. 
KerryJo Sampson is willing to give this a try and will solicit information from community 
organizations and committees. She will provide a document to the Town Manager for review before 
posting. The Board agrees to do a poll on generating a name for the newsletter which can go out on 
MailChimp and social media for public input.  

d. Amber Swett – Discussion regarding Select Board liaisons for Committees
Amber Swett – Amber Swett proposed each Board member act as liaison to specific committees to
improve awareness of committee activities.
Assignments:

KerryJo Sampson – Parks & Recreation Committee
David Alves – Comprehensive Plan Committee, Ordinance Review Committee, and Buildings &
Grounds Committee
Amber Swett – Cemetery Committee, IT Committee and if volunteers are appointed will also take
on the Recycling & Waste Committee
Victoria Gavel – Conservation & Forestry Committee
Discussion regarding gathering quarterly reports from each committee. The first quarterly report
due in October to review July through September. The Town Manager will reach out to the
Committees to let them know.

e. KerryJo Sampson – Discussion regarding Select board emails
KerryJo Sampson – proposes an auto-response just for emails in general as the Town Manager is
already responsible for other inquiries and/or complaints and this proposal was meant to reinforce
current process and procedures.
Lindsay Gagne – There are some concerns depending on the correspondence that is sent and how
the auto-response is perceived. Such replies might imply reopening resolved matters and conflict
with complaint-handling policies as well as other implications that could be conflicting. It’s not
advisable for the board to have an auto-response and could pose implications and complicate
current procedures. The Board can always respond to an email without an auto-response and
redirect correspondence.
The Board agreed not to implement auto-responses.

f. Appointment – Age Friendly Ad Hoc Committee (2 Applicants)
David Alves – Motions to accept the recommendation of the Town Manager to consider an
executive session to review expectations and roles prior to appointment.
KerryJo Sampson – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0
Discussion this would be for both applicants and tabled to the next meeting agenda.

ITEM #6 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 07/21/2025

David Alves – Motions to approve. Amber Swett seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #7 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #6 in the amount of $33,196.95

David Alves – Motions to approve. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #60 (FY2025) in the amount of $15,421.00

Amber Swett- Motions to approve. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
c. Accounts Payable Warrant #7 (FY2026) in the amount of $688,539.05

KerryJo Sampson – motions to approve. David Alves seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
Discussion noted regarding reimbursement or cancellation policies for the Lowery Band concert,
which was canceled due to rain.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday July 21st, 2025 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 5 of 5 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

ADJOURN 

David Alves – Motions to adjourn. KerryJo seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

__________________________________________ 
Victoria Gavel 

__________________________________________ 
David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_____________________________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

_____________________________________________ 

KerryJo Sampson 

I, Lindsay Gagne, Town Manager of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting of 5 pages 
are the original minutes of the Select Board Meeting dated August 4th, 2025 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne DRAFT



ITEM #7: (a.) Payroll Warrant





ITEM #7: (b.) AP Warrant
















